
City Plan Commission

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed to 

the Community and Economic Development Department, 

920-832-6468.

Council Chambers, 6th Floor4:00 PMTuesday, February 23, 2021

1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call of membership

3. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

21-0172 City Plan Minutes from 2-9-21

City Plan Minutes 2-9-21.pdfAttachments:

4. Public Hearings/Appearances

21-0173 Rezoning #2-21 to rezone 2501 N. Meade Street (Tax Id #31-6-1808-00), 

including all of the adjacent one-half right-of-way, as shown on the attached 

maps, from C-2 General Commercial District to R-1B Single-family District 

(Associated with Action Item #21-0174)

InformalPublicHearingNotice_2501NMeade St_Rezoning#2-21.pdfAttachments:

5. Action Items

21-0174 Request to approve Rezoning #2-21 to rezone 2501 N. Meade Street (Tax 

Id #31-6-1808-00), including all of the adjacent one-half right-of-way, as 

shown on the attached maps, from C-2 General Commercial District to 

R-1B Single-family District

StaffReport_2501NMeadeSt_Rezoning_For02-23-21.pdfAttachments:

21-0175 Request to approve the First Addition to Broadway Hills Estates 

Annexation consisting of approximately 16.6454 acres generally located 

approximately 1,400 feet north of the intersection of N. French Road and E. 

Broadway Drive, on the west side of French Road, currently in the Town of 

Freedom, as shown on the attached maps subject to the stipulation in the 

attached staff report

StaffReport_1stAddBroadwayHillsEstates_Annexation_For02-23-21.pdfAttachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 2/18/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=16923
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1ed9edad-6837-4c54-8f2b-a1f83df41ab5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=16924
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=93d64d56-2c7d-431f-a10d-8c41ade5e011.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=16925
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f0cb2e13-a366-4f69-9ae1-02b791910bdd.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=16926
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=31dfb8e7-6fc2-4c8c-87c5-d7795d236852.pdf


February 23, 2021City Plan Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

6. Information Items

7. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 2/18/2021



100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

City Plan Commission

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed 

to the Community and Economic Development Department, 

920-832-6468.

4:00 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorTuesday, February 9, 2021

Call meeting to order1.

Meeting called to order at 4:00 p.m.

Roll call of membership2.

Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and UitenbroekPresent: 6 - 

PalmAbsent: 1 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting3.

21-0146 City Plan Minutes from 1-26-21

City Plan Minutes 1-26-21.pdfAttachments:

Buetow moved, seconded by Fenton, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek6 - 

Absent: Palm1 - 

Public Hearings/Appearances4.

Action Items5.

21-0069 Request to approve the Apple Ridge 2 Preliminary Plat as shown on the 

attached maps and subject to the conditions in the attached staff report

StaffReport_PrePlat_AppleRidge2_For02-09-21.pdfAttachments:

Fenton moved, seconded by Uitenbroek, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek6 - 

Absent: Palm1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=16897
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3e980899-9b66-4365-b8e0-7e12cc899ec6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=16820
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=eade22c3-a771-4315-ac5c-f027ae0edb76.pdf


February 9, 2021City Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

Information Items6.

Adjournment7.

Buetow moved, seconded by Dane, that the meeting be adjourned at 4:05 p.m. 

Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek6 - 

Absent: Palm1 - 

Page 2City of Appleton



NOTICE OF INFORMAL PUBLIC HEARING 

 

OF THE 

 

APPLETON CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

 
 

Dear property owner(s): 

 

The City of Appleton Plan Commission will conduct an Informal Public Hearing on Tuesday, February 23, 

2021, at 4:00 P.M., in Common Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 North Appleton Street, or as 

soon thereafter as can be heard, for the following proposed rezoning request: 

 

The owner, Wisconsin Electric Power Company, on behalf of  the applicant, Greater Fox Cities Area Habitat 

for Humanity, is requesting to rezone Property Tax Id #31-6-1808-00 (2501 N. Meade Street) as shown on 

the attached maps from C-2 General Commercial District to R-1B Single-family District. The R-1B district 

is intended to provide for and maintain residential areas characterized predominately by single-family, 

detached dwellings on medium sized lots while protecting residential neighborhoods from the intrusion of 

incompatible non-residential uses. 

 

Purpose of the Rezoning:  This lot was used for a power substation since 1966 that has been removed 

recently.  All adjoining properties, as well as those across the street, are residential.  Greater Fox Cities 

Area Habitat for Humanity would like to construct a single family house on this lot. 

 

ALDERMANIC DISTRICT:   14 – Alderperson Joe Prohaska, Jr. 

 

You are being notified as a policy of the City of Appleton Community and Economic Development 

Department.  All persons interested are invited to express your views or concerns regarding the above-

described request. The Common Council meeting is open to the public; however, considering the COVID-

19 Health Emergency, you are strongly encouraged to share any feedback with council members via written 

letter, email or phone call instead of appearing in person.  Please contact Don Harp, Principal Planner, in 

the Community and Economic Development Department at 920-832-6466 or by email at 

don.harp@appleton.org. 

 

Alternatively, you can also contact the Mayor’s Office at mayor@appleton.org and your comments will be 

forwarded to the Common Council. The Common Council makes the final decision on the matter. 
 

 

 

 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION   COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT   

   CITY HALL - 100 NORTH APPLETON STREET 

 APPLETON, WISCONSIN 54911-4799 

 920-832-6468 
 

 

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible. 

mailto:don.harp@appleton.org
mailto:mayor@appleton.org


23
35

24
17

24
07

-09
24

23
25

01
26

13
-15

26
03

26
24

25
08

25
16

25
24

26
00

26
08

25
15

26
01

26
09

26
25

26
17

26
24

26
16

26
21

26
08

26
00

25
12

25
20

25
21

25
25

26
01

26
07

26
13

24
18

24
10

23
01

23
02

23
06

23
18

22
18

22
15

22
20 22
21

23
02

23
16

22
18

25
21

27
00

26
30

27
00 26
29

25
15

26
31

27
18

27
08

27
03

27
09

27
13 27
12

27
08

27
01

800 810 820 830

807 811 813 819 825 831 837

814 820 828 836 848 850802
807 813 819 825 831

808 812 816 824
807

849

850
849

23
12

22
12

22
19

24
02

25
04

26
00

26
32

-36
26

24
23

19
25

18
26

16

610-612 620-626

619
600

613
612 700

625
622

707 711
710 730

719
722

725 731

713615 701619 707 721
712

713

619

612

607 613

700622 706

701625 707 719

607 613 701619 707

718

725

719

712

719
718

612 618

613
608

619
616

700624 706

705625
624 706

713
712

718

724
725

701

725.5

631-33623-25609-11 619-21 701-03

614 622 700626 712706 724718
27

19

27
25

6-2
73

7

6-2
73

5

6-2
05

7
6-2

74
5

6-2
05

3

6-2
74

2

6-2
74

1

6-2
74

0

6-2
73

9

6-2
73

6

6-2
05

1

6-2
05

2

6-1
94

6
6-2

73
4

6-2
73

3

6-1908-2

6-1
80

8

6-1
80

6

6-1
80

7

6-2
76

8

6-2
76

7

6-2
75

6
6-3

00
3

6-2
96

9

6-2
96

8

6-2
96

7

6-2
96

6

6-2
96

5

6-2
96

4

6-2
75

2
6-2

99
9

6-2
99

7
6-2

75
0

6-2
75

1

6-2
98

0
6-2

96
3

6-2
99

8
6-2

97
9

6-2
97

8

6-2
75

4

6-2
75

3

6-2
75

5

6-3
00

1

6-3
00

0

6-3
00

2

6-2
97

1

6-3
00

5
6-2

75
8

6-2
75

7

6-1
94

8

6-2
07

0

6-1
94

7

6-2
05

5

6-2
05

4

6-2
05

6

6-2
74

6

6-2
05

9

6-2
05

8

6-2
06

1
6-2

06
0

6-2
74

3

6-2
74

4
6-2

73
1

6-2
76

6

6-2
76

0

6-2
61

1
6-2

61
5

6-2
72

5
6-2

60
9

6-2
72

6
6-2

61
0

6-2
61

3

6-2
61

4

6-2
72

9
6-1

90
9

6-2
72

8
6-2

61
2

6-2
73

0
6-1

91
0

6-1
91

1

6-1
80

3

6-2
61

6

6-1
80

4

6-1
80

5

6-2
76

2

6-2
76

1

6-2
76

4

6-2
76

3

6-2
76

5

6-1908

6-2
73

2

6-1
90

8-1

0-2937

1-4086

1-4085

1-4027

1-4028

1-3996 1-4029

1-3994

1-4000

1-3999 1-4026

1-4025

1-3998

1-3997

1-3993

1-3992

1-3991

1-3991-1

1-4030

1-4031

1-4032

1-4033

1-4034

1-3990

1-3995

1-4038

1-4040

1-4041

1-4042

1-4039 1-4082

1-4083

1-4084

1-3
48

8

1-3
48

9

1-3
49

0

1-3
49

1

1-3
49

2

1-3
49

7

1-3
49

6

1-3
49

5

1-3
49

4

1-3
49

3

1-4043

1-4044

1-4045

1-4046

1-4005 1-4003

1-4089

1-4088

1-4087

1-4
01

1

1-4
01

2

1-4
01

3

1-4
01

4

1-4
01

5

1-4
01

6

1-4
01

8

1-4
01

7
1-3380

1-3381

1-3
38

5

1-3
38

6

1-3
38

7

1-3
38

2

1-3
38

3

1-3
38

4

1-3
38

8

1-3486

1-3487

1-3498

1-3499

1-3
51

1

1-3502

1-3501

1-3
50

7

1-3
50

8

1-3
51

0

1-3
50

9

1-3
47

2

1-3
47

3

1-3
48

5

1-3
48

4
1-3

51
2

1-3
52

4

1-3
52

3

6-3
00

4

6-2
97

6

6-2
97

7

6-2
97

5

6-2
97

4

6-2
97

2

0-2945

R-1B

C-2
R-2

R-2

P

R-
2

C-2
N 

ME
AD

E S
T

E BYRD STN 
UN

IO
N 

ST

E PERSHING ST

E LINDBERGH ST

KE
ST

IN
G 

CT

E LONGVIEW DR

N 
RA

NK
IN

 ST

N 
ME

AD
E P

L

N 
ME

AD
E 

ST

N 
ON

EI
DA

 S
T

E NORTHLAND AV

E GLENDALE AV

E PERSHING ST
N 

DR
EW

 S
T

N 
OW

AI
SS

A S
T

Rezoning
2501 N. Meade Street

C-2 General Commercial District to 
R-1B Single-family District

Zoning Map

Subject Area

Subject Area

±0 200 400100 FeetCity Plan Commission
2-23-2021



N 
ME

AD
E S

T

E PERSHING ST

E MC ARTHUR ST

Rezoning
2501 N. Meade Street

C-2 General Commercial District to 
R-1B Single-family District

Aerial Map

0 200100
Feet ±

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
2-23-2021



 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION____________________________________________________ 

Owner:  Wisconsin Electric Power Company, Nathaniel Sheahan and Tonya Peters 

 

Applicant:  Greater Fox Cities Area Habitat for Humanity, Roger Roth 

 

Address/Parcel#:  2501 North Meade Street / Parcel #31-6-1808-00 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  Owner/Applicant is requesting a zoning change from C-2 General Commercial 

District to R-1B Single-family District.  Greater Fox Cities Area Habitat for Humanity would like to 

construct a single-family house on this lot. 

 

BACKGROUND_______________________________________________________________ 

Since 1966, a power substation occupied the subject site.  Recently, the power substation has been 

removed, and the lot is for sale. 

   

STAFF ANALYSIS_____________________________________________________________ 

Proposed Zoning Classification:  The purpose of the R-1B Single-Family District is to provide for and 

maintain residential areas characterized predominately by single-family, detached dwellings on medium-

sized lots while protecting residential neighborhoods from the intrusion of incompatible non-residential 

uses.  

 

Zoning Ordinance Review Criteria:  Lot development standards (Section 23-93 – R-1B Single-Family 

District) are as follows: 

 

 Minimum lot area:  Six thousand (6,000) square feet. 

 

o The subject site (6,930 square feet) satisfies this standard. 

 

 Minimum lot width:  Fifty (50) feet. 

 

o The subject site (63 feet) satisfies this standard. 

 

REPORT TO PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Informal Public Hearing Date:  February 23, 2021 

Common Council Public Hearing & Meeting Date:  March 17, 2021 

Item:  Rezoning #2-21 - 2501 North Meade Street 

Case Manager:  Don Harp, Principal Planner 

     Community and  

     Economic 

     Development 



Rezoning #2-21 

February 23, 2021 

Page 2 

 

 

Surrounding zoning and land uses: 

 

North: R-2 Two-Family District – Two-family residential 

 South: R-1B Single-Family District – Single-family residential  

 East: R-1B Single-Family District – Single-family residential  

 West: R-1B Single-Family District – Single-family residential  

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  The City of Appleton 2010-2030 Comprehensive Plan Map 

identifies the subject area as future Single-Family/Two–Family residential land uses.  
 

Overall Community Goals 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth (Chapter 10 – Land Use) 

 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 3 – Housing Quality, Variety, and Affordability 

Appleton will provide a variety of rental and ownership housing choices in a range of prices affordable to 

community residents, and ensure that existing housing is adequately maintained in terms of physical 

quality and market viability. 

 

OBJECTIVE 5.1 Continue efforts to ensure an adequate supply of housing affordable to all income levels 

in the community. 

OBJECTIVE 5.3 Housing and Neighborhoods: 

Provide a range of housing options that meet the needs and appeal to all segments of the community and 

allows residents to age in place. 

 

Policy 5.3.3  Plan for a supply of developable land suitable for residential development. 

 

Standards for Zoning Map Amendments:  Per Section 23-65(d)(3) of the Municipal Code, all 

recommendations for Official Zoning Map amendments shall be consistent with the adopted plans, goals, 

and policies of the City and with the intent of the Zoning Ordinance.  It would appear the criteria 

established by Section 23-65(d)(3) Zoning Amendments has been satisfied. 

 

 

 

 



Rezoning #2-21 

February 23, 2021 

Page 3 

 

 

Related excerpts are listed below. 

 

a. Prior to making a recommendation on a proposed rezoning, the Plan Commission shall make a 

finding to determine if the following conditions exist.  No rezoning of land shall be approved prior 

to finding at least one of the following: 

 

1. The request for a zone change is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan for the City of 

Appleton.  The rezoning request is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 

goals and objectives stated above and the Future Land Use Map, which identifies this area for 

future one and two family residential land uses. 

 

2. A study submitted by the applicant that indicates that there has been an increase in the demand 

for land in the requested zoning district, and as a result, the supply of land within the City 

mapped as such on the Official Zoning Map is inadequate to meet the demands for such 

development. 

 

3. Proposed amendments cannot be accommodated by sites already zoned in the City due to lack 

of transportation, utilities or other development constraints, or the market to be served by the 

proposed use cannot be effectively served by the location of the existing zoning district(s). 

 

4. There is an error in the code text or zoning map as enacted. 

 

b. In addition to the findings required to be made by subsection (a), findings shall be made by the 

Plan Commission on each of the following matters based on the evidence presented: 

 

1. The adequacy of public facilities such as transportation, utilities and other required public 

services to serve the proposed site.  The subject area is served by existing infrastructure, and 

the transportation network should be able to accommodate the future use of subject site. 

 

2. The effect of the proposed rezoning on surrounding uses.  Single-family and two-family uses 

are already present adjacent to the subject site.  Therefore, the proposed rezoning request is 

unlikely to create adverse impacts in the surrounding neighborhood. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the February 2, 2021 TRG Agenda.  

No negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________________ 

 

Staff recommends, based upon the standards for map amendments as required by Section 23-65(d)(3) of 

the Zoning Ordinance, that Rezoning Application #2-21 to rezone the subject parcel (Tax Id #31-6-1808-

00) from C-2 General Commercial District to R-1B Single-family District, including to the centerline of 

North Meade Street and East Pershing Street right-of-way, as shown on the attached maps, BE 

APPROVED. 



23
35

24
17

24
07

-09
24

23
25

01
26

13
-15

26
03

26
24

25
08

25
16

25
24

26
00

26
08

25
15

26
01

26
09

26
25

26
17

26
24

26
16

26
21

26
08

26
00

25
12

25
20

25
21

25
25

26
01

26
07

26
13

24
18

24
10

23
01

23
02

23
06

23
18

22
18

22
15

22
20 22
21

23
02

23
16

22
18

25
21

27
00

26
30

27
00 26
29

25
15

26
31

27
18

27
08

27
03

27
09

27
13 27
12

27
08

27
01

800 810 820 830

807 811 813 819 825 831 837

814 820 828 836 848 850802
807 813 819 825 831

808 812 816 824
807

849

850
849

23
12

22
12

22
19

24
02

25
04

26
00

26
32

-36
26

24
23

19
25

18
26

16

610-612 620-626

619
600

613
612 700

625
622

707 711
710 730

719
722

725 731

713615 701619 707 721
712

713

619

612

607 613

700622 706

701625 707 719

607 613 701619 707

718

725

719

712

719
718

612 618

613
608

619
616

700624 706

705625
624 706

713
712

718

724
725

701

725.5

631-33623-25609-11 619-21 701-03

614 622 700626 712706 724718
27

19

27
25

6-2
73

7

6-2
73

5

6-2
05

7
6-2

74
5

6-2
05

3

6-2
74

2

6-2
74

1

6-2
74

0

6-2
73

9

6-2
73

6

6-2
05

1

6-2
05

2

6-1
94

6
6-2

73
4

6-2
73

3

6-1908-2

6-1
80

8

6-1
80

6

6-1
80

7

6-2
76

8

6-2
76

7

6-2
75

6
6-3

00
3

6-2
96

9

6-2
96

8

6-2
96

7

6-2
96

6

6-2
96

5

6-2
96

4

6-2
75

2
6-2

99
9

6-2
99

7
6-2

75
0

6-2
75

1

6-2
98

0
6-2

96
3

6-2
99

8
6-2

97
9

6-2
97

8

6-2
75

4

6-2
75

3

6-2
75

5

6-3
00

1

6-3
00

0

6-3
00

2

6-2
97

1

6-3
00

5
6-2

75
8

6-2
75

7

6-1
94

8

6-2
07

0

6-1
94

7

6-2
05

5

6-2
05

4

6-2
05

6

6-2
74

6

6-2
05

9

6-2
05

8

6-2
06

1
6-2

06
0

6-2
74

3

6-2
74

4
6-2

73
1

6-2
76

6

6-2
76

0

6-2
61

1
6-2

61
5

6-2
72

5
6-2

60
9

6-2
72

6
6-2

61
0

6-2
61

3

6-2
61

4

6-2
72

9
6-1

90
9

6-2
72

8
6-2

61
2

6-2
73

0
6-1

91
0

6-1
91

1

6-1
80

3

6-2
61

6

6-1
80

4

6-1
80

5

6-2
76

2

6-2
76

1

6-2
76

4

6-2
76

3

6-2
76

5

6-1908

6-2
73

2

6-1
90

8-1

0-2937

1-4086

1-4085

1-4027

1-4028

1-3996 1-4029

1-3994

1-4000

1-3999 1-4026

1-4025

1-3998

1-3997

1-3993

1-3992

1-3991

1-3991-1

1-4030

1-4031

1-4032

1-4033

1-4034

1-3990

1-3995

1-4038

1-4040

1-4041

1-4042

1-4039 1-4082

1-4083

1-4084

1-3
48

8

1-3
48

9

1-3
49

0

1-3
49

1

1-3
49

2

1-3
49

7

1-3
49

6

1-3
49

5

1-3
49

4

1-3
49

3

1-4043

1-4044

1-4045

1-4046

1-4005 1-4003

1-4089

1-4088

1-4087

1-4
01

1

1-4
01

2

1-4
01

3

1-4
01

4

1-4
01

5

1-4
01

6

1-4
01

8

1-4
01

7
1-3380

1-3381

1-3
38

5

1-3
38

6

1-3
38

7

1-3
38

2

1-3
38

3

1-3
38

4

1-3
38

8

1-3486

1-3487

1-3498

1-3499

1-3
51

1

1-3502

1-3501

1-3
50

7

1-3
50

8

1-3
51

0

1-3
50

9

1-3
47

2

1-3
47

3

1-3
48

5

1-3
48

4
1-3

51
2

1-3
52

4

1-3
52

3

6-3
00

4

6-2
97

6

6-2
97

7

6-2
97

5

6-2
97

4

6-2
97

2

0-2945

R-1B

C-2
R-2

R-2

P

R-
2

C-2
N 

ME
AD

E S
T

E BYRD STN 
UN

IO
N 

ST

E PERSHING ST

E LINDBERGH ST

KE
ST

IN
G 

CT

E LONGVIEW DR

N 
RA

NK
IN

 ST

N 
ME

AD
E P

L

N 
ME

AD
E 

ST

N 
ON

EI
DA

 S
T

E NORTHLAND AV

E GLENDALE AV

E PERSHING ST
N 

DR
EW

 S
T

N 
OW

AI
SS

A S
T

Rezoning
2501 N. Meade Street

C-2 General Commercial District to 
R-1B Single-family District

Zoning Map

Subject Area

Subject Area

±0 200 400100 FeetCity Plan Commission
2-23-2021



N 
ME

AD
E S

T

E PERSHING ST

E MC ARTHUR ST

Rezoning
2501 N. Meade Street

C-2 General Commercial District to 
R-1B Single-family District

Aerial Map

0 200100
Feet ±

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
2-23-2021



 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  North Appleton Properties, LLC, Gregory Gauerke - Member  

 

Town Where Property is Located:  Town of Freedom  

 

Parcel Number:  090-0855-00 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  Owners are requesting direct annexation by unanimous approval pursuant to 

Section 66.0217(2), Wisconsin State Statutes of land currently located in the Town of Freedom, 

Outagamie County. 

 

Purpose for Annexation:  To allow for the future development of a single-family subdivision.  

 

Population of Such Territory:  0 

 

Annexation Area:  16.6454 acres m/l 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

On December 31, 2003, the City of Appleton and the Town of Freedom agreed to and entered into an 

initial 50 year Intermunicipal Cooperation Agreement pursuant to Section 66.0301, 66.0305 and 66.0225 

of the Wisconsin State Statutes for the purpose of defining and expanding the provision of governmental 

services, including water and sewer services, by establishing the City’s growth area and establishing 

provisions for annexation of land within the Town of Freedom to the City of Appleton. 

 

The Broadway Hills Estates Annexation (39.427 acres m/l) was approved by the Plan Commission on 

July 7, 2020 and by the Common Council on July 15, 2020.  The Broadway Hills Estates Annexation is 

located directly south of this annexation request and was officially annexed to the City on July 21, 2020. 

 

 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  February 23, 2021 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  March 3, 2021 

 

Anticipated Date Annexation Effective:  March 9, 2021 at 12:01 a.m. 

 

Item:  1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates Annexation 

 

Case Manager:  Don Harp, Principal Planner 

Community 

and Economic  

Development 



1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates Annexation  

February 23, 2021 

Page 2 

 

 

On September 2, 2020, the Final Plat for Broadway Hills Estates located directly south of this annexation 

was approved by the Common Council.  This plat divided the 39.72 acre property into 20 single-family 

residential lots and 2 outlots for stormwater ponds. 

 

On February 10, 2021, the Wisconsin Department of Administration (DOA) issued their review letter and 

has determined the proposed 1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates Annexation is in the public interest 

per Wisconsin State Statute 66.0217 (6), and the City can provide the needed municipal services to the 

annexation area. As a result, the Common Council may act on this request at their March 3, 2021 meeting. 

(See attached) 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

The Community and Economic Development Department staff has reviewed the annexation petition and 

identifies the following: 

 

 The area proposed for annexation is contiguous to the existing City boundary located to the west 

and south of the annexation area.  

 

 Annexation of the site in question is consistent with the Intermunicipal Cooperation Agreement 

with the Town of Freedom. 

 

 City sanitary sewer and water infrastructure is already installed along Broadway Drive and within 

an easement along the west side of annexation area.  Annexation to the City of Appleton is 

required before the subject property could connect to the City sewer and water. 

 

 The owner is requesting the City Plan Commission initiate a rezoning application for the 

annexation area from temporary AG Agricultural District to a permanent zoning classification of 

R-1B Single-Family District.  This request is anticipated to be scheduled for an informal public 

hearing at the March 9, 2021 Plan Commission meeting.  The temporary zoning classification 

must be made permanent in accordance with Section 23-65(d), Zoning Map Amendments, within 

90 days, or the zoning will revert to AG Agricultural District. 

 

 It has come to the City’s attention, a metal storage building (approximate size 40 ft. x 80 ft.) was 

moved from its original location (City of Appleton Parcel Id Number 1-9210-39, Lot 20 of 

Broadway Hills Estates) and placed on the parcel identified in this annexation request (Town of 

Freedom Parcel Id Number 090-0855-00).  Based upon information provided by the property 

owner, building permit #2020-116 was issued on December 14, 2020 by Town of Freedom 

Building Inspector to allow this building to be moved and placed on Parcel Id Number 090-0855-

00.  Buildings lawfully existing at the time of annexation to the City may be continued, although 

the use, size, or location does not conform to the provisions of the Municipal Code.  As a result, 

this metal storage building will be deemed a legal, nonconforming building (size and agricultural 

storage of farming equipment and bales of hay) and the applicable provisions of Section 23-42 

Nonconforming buildings, structures, uses and lots of the Municipal Code shall apply to specific 

nonconforming circumstances.  



1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates Annexation 

February 23, 2021 

Page 3 

 

 

Surrounding Zoning Classification and Land Uses: 

 

North:  Town of Freedom.  The adjacent land use to the north is currently residential and agricultural land. 

 

South: City of Appleton - R-1B Single-Family District.  The adjacent land use to the south is currently 

being developed as single-family residential (Broadway Hills Estates). 

 

East:  Town of Freedom.  The adjacent land uses to the east are currently a mix of single-family 

residential and agricultural uses.  

 

West:  City of Appleton - AG Agricultural District.  City of Appleton sanitary sewer and water easement 

parcel. 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  The City of Appleton 2010-2030 Comprehensive Plan Map 

identifies the subject area as future One/Two–Family residential. The proposed annexation is consistent 

with the following goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030.  

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

OBJECTIVE 5.3 Housing and Neighborhoods: 

Provide a range of housing options that meet the needs and appeal to all segments of the community and 

allows residents to age in place. 

Policy 5.3.3  Plan for a supply of developable land suitable for residential development. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.1 Land Use:  

Provide an adequate supply of suitable land meeting the demand for development of various land uses. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the February 2, 2021 TRG Agenda.   

No negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

FUTURE ACTIONS___________________________________________________________________ 

 Per Section 23-65(e) of the Municipal Code, a temporary zoning classification of AG Agricultural 

District is assigned to newly annexed territory, with the permanent rezoning process taking place 

after the subject site has been annexed to the City.  All territory annexed to the City is assigned a 

zoning classification as recommended by Plan Commission.  

 

 



1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates Annexation 

February 23, 2021 

Page 4 

 

 

 The Plan Commission shall consider the following criteria in selection of an appropriate zoning 

district for the annexed land:  

 

- The existing land uses within the territory to be annexed; 

- The surrounding land uses that exist on adjacent properties regardless of municipal boundary 

lines; 

- The comprehensive plan of the City. 

 

 The owners are requesting that Plan Commission initiate a rezoning for the subject property from 

temporary AG Agricultural District to a permanent zoning classification of R-1B Single-Family 

District.  A rezoning initiated directly by Plan Commission will be processed in accordance with 

Section 23-65(d), Zoning Map Amendments, which includes review and action by the Common 

Council. 

 

 Review and approval of a Preliminary Plat and Final Plat will be needed to subdivide the subject 

site.  Each of these items requires action by Plan Commission and Common Council. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends that the 1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates Annexation, as shown on the attached 

maps, BE APPROVED with the following stipulation: 

 

1. The Plan Commission initiate the rezoning for the subject property, from temporary AG 

Agricultural District to a permanent zoning classification of R-1B Single-Family District, pursuant 

to Section 23-65(d)(1) of the Municipal Code. 

 



February 10, 2021 PETITION FILE NO. 14366

KAMI LYNCH, CLERK
CITY OF APPLETON
100 N APPLETON ST
APPLETON, WI 54911-4702

COLLEEN LAHA, CLERK
TOWN OF FREEDOM
W2004 COUNTY RD S
FREEDOM, WI 54131-7502

Subject: FIRST ADDITION TO BROADWAY HILLS ESTATES ANNEXATION

The proposed annexation submitted to our office on January 22, 2021, has been reviewed and found to be in the 
public interest. In determining whether an annexation is in the public interest, s. 66.0217 (6), Wis. Stats. requires the 
Department to examine "[t]he shape of the proposed annexation and the homogeneity of the territory with the 
annexing village or city…." so as, to ensure the resulting boundaries are rational and compact. The statute also 
requires the Department to consider whether the annexing city or village can provide needed municipal services to 
the territory. The subject petition is for territory that is reasonably shaped and contiguous to the CITY OF 
APPLETON, which is able to provide needed municipal services.

The Department reminds clerks of annexing municipalities of the requirements of s. 66.0217 (9)(a), Wis. Stats., 
which states:

"The clerk of a city or village which has annexed shall file immediately with the secretary of administration a 
certified copy of the ordinance, certificate and plat, and shall send one copy to each company that provides any utility 
service in the area that is annexed. The clerk shall record the ordinance with the register of deeds and file a signed 
copy of the ordinance with the clerk of any affected school district..."

State and federal aids based on population and equalized value may be significantly affected through failure to file 
with the Department of Administration. Please file a copy of your annexing ordinance, including a statement 
certifying the population of the annexed territory. Please include your MBR number 14366 with your ordinance. 
Ordinance filing checklist available at http://mds.wi.gov/, click on "Help on How to Submit Municipal Records". 
Email scanned copy of required materials (color scan maps with color) to mds@wi.gov or mail to: Wisconsin 
Department of Administration, Municipal Boundary Review, PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701-1645.

The petition file is available for viewing at: http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2440
Please call me at (608) 264-6102, should you have any questions concerning this annexation review.

Sincerely,

Erich Schmidtke, Municipal Boundary Review cc: petitioner

TONY EVERS

JOEL BRENNAN

GOVERNOR

SECRETARY

Municipal Boundary Review
PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701
Voice (608) 264-6102     Fax (608) 264-6104
Email: wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov
Web: http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview

http://mds.wi.gov/
mailto:mds@wi.gov
http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2440
http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2440


1-9203-8

1-9210

1-9200-88

1-9200-89
1-9200-90

1-8303-25

1-9
21

0-2

1-9210-10

1-8303-28

1-9210-23

1-9210-24

1-9210-25

1-9210-26

1-9210-27

1-9210-28 1-9210-29 1-9210-41

1-9210-301-9210-31
1-9210-32

1-9210-33

1-9210-34

1-9210-39

AG

AG

R-1B

C-2

R-1B

NC

R-1B

FR
EN

CH
 R

D

E APPLE CREEK RD

EVERGREEN LA

N SNOWDRIFT DR

CT
Y T

K E

HO
LL

AN
D 

RD

N 
BA

LL
AR

D 
RD

FR
EN

CH
 R

D

GREINER RD

N 
FR

EN
CH

 R
DN 

KU
RE

Y D
R

BROADWAY DR

Annexation (Town of Freedom)
Broadway Hills Estates 1st Addition 
Temporary AG Agricultural District

Zoning Map

Subject Area

Subject Area

Plan Commission

City Limits

Cit
y L

im
its

0 100 20050 Feet

Temporary AG



FR
EN

CH
 R

D

N SNOWDRIFT DR

Annexation (Town of Freedom)
Broadway Hills Estates 1st Addition 
Temporary AG Agricultural District

Aerial Map

Plan Commission

0 200 400
Feet ±

Subject Area





Area
725,074 Square Feet

16.6454 Acres

N
02

° 0
3'

 4
7"

E 
  1

37
1.

58
'

N
02

° 0
3'

 4
7"

E 
  5

75
.4

6'

S0
1°

 5
9'

 4
0"

W
   

57
4.

22
'

N89° 51' 17"W   1262.37'

S89° 47' 58"E   1261.64'

Lands to be Annexed to the
City of Appleton

Existing Municipal Boundary
File: 6405Annex.dwg
Date: 12/08/2020
Drafted By: jim
Sheet: Exhibit

Annexation Exhibit

3001500

Part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 ,
Section 31, Township 22 North, Range 18 East,
Town of Freedom, Outagamie County Wisconsin

DAVEL ENGINEERING &
ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.
Civil Engineers and Land Surveyors

1164 Province Terrace,  Menasha, WI  54952
Ph:   920-991-1866  Fax:  920-441-0804

www.davel.pro

Bearings are referenced to the East line of the
Northeast 1/4, Section 31, T22N, R18E,

bearing S01°59'41"W, base on the
Outagamie County Coordinate System.

Owner/Developer:
North Appleton Properties, LLC
C/O Greg Gauerke
4226 E. Appleseed Dr.
Appleton, WI 54913

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southeast Corner  Section 31, T22N, R18E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 2 ____ CSM 7294 _______

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 1 ____ CSM 7294 _______

AutoCAD SHX Text
Outlot 2 ______

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 10 _____

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 9 ____

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 8 _____

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 7 _____

AutoCAD SHX Text
Part of Outlot 1 ____________ CSM 5664 ________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Unplatted Lands ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Part of Outlot 1 ____________ CSM 5664 ________

AutoCAD SHX Text
East line of the Southeast 1/4 S01°59'41"W  2638.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
East 1/4 Corner  Section 31, T22N, R18E

AutoCAD SHX Text
659.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1404.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Broadway Hills Estates ________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
City of Appleton

AutoCAD SHX Text
Town of Freedom

AutoCAD SHX Text
City of Appleton

AutoCAD SHX Text
Town of Freedom

AutoCAD SHX Text
Town of Freedom

AutoCAD SHX Text
French Road _________

AutoCAD SHX Text
(66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/8/2020 9:18 AM  J:\Projects\6405nor\dwg\Civil 3D\6405Annex.dwg  Printed by: jim  J:\Projects\6405nor\dwg\Civil 3D\6405Annex.dwg  Printed by: jimJ:\Projects\6405nor\dwg\Civil 3D\6405Annex.dwg  Printed by: jim  Printed by: jimjim


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_City Plan Minutes 2-9-21
	0002_1_InformalPublicHearingNotice_2501NMeade St_Rezoning2-21
	0003_1_StaffReport_2501NMeadeSt_Rezoning_For02-23-21
	0004_1_StaffReport_1stAddBroadwayHillsEstates_Annexation_For02-23-21

